
MEMO 
TO:   PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  JUDY KRAJCA, PLANNING ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2010 
 
RE:   Outline of January 18, 2010 Meeting 
 
 
The evening will begin with dinner arriving at 5:15 p.m.  Dinner will be catered by Gringo’s 
Mexican Restaurant.  (I do not have the menu at this writing.) 
 
 
 
P&Z Agendas Posted:  
6:30 p.m. Joint Public Hearing     Council Chambers, City Hall 
6:30 p.m. Joint Workshop-Spectrum Area Study  Council Chambers, City Hall 
6:30 p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting     2nd floor Conference Room, City Hall 
    
City Council’s Agendas Posted:  
6:00 p.m.  Public Hearing - Curfew Ordinance  Council Chambers, City Hall 
6:30 p.m.  Joint Public Hearing     Council Chambers, City Hall 
6:30 p.m.  Joint Workshop-Spectrum Area Study  Council Chambers, City Hall 
7:00 p.m.  Special Meeting-Interviews for P&Z Comm.  
 
 
     
 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AND 
PLANNING & ZONING 

COMMISSION 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND,
TEXAS, TO BE HELD JANUARY 18, 2010, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND,
TEXAS

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING

Zone Change No. 2009-15Z

A request of Ron Jackson with Curry Architecture, applicant for Ross
Maccammon, owner, for a change in zoning from the Single Family Residential-1
(R-1) Zoning District to the Planned Development Multi-Family (PD-MF) Zoning
District, on the following described property, to wit:

Legal Description : Being a tract of land approximately 9.5171 acres in the
W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract No. 70, Brazoria County, Texas and being the
residue of that tract sold by None Gay Carr to Ross A. McClendon, as described
in deed recorded under Brazoria county Clerk’s file No. 95-022654.

General Location: Located at 2810 Dixie Farm Road, Pearland, Texas

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

A. STAFF REPORT
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED
REQUEST

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION

VI. ADJOURNMENT

This site is accessible to disabled individuals. For special assistance, please call
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that
appropriate arrangements can be made.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 1

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM
MEETING OF JANUARY 18, 2010

Zone Change No. 2009-15Z

A request of Ron Jackson with Curry Architecture, applicant for Ross Maccammon,
owner, for a change in zoning from the Single Family Residential-1 (R-1) Zoning
District to the Planned Development Multi-Family (PD-MF) Zoning District, on the
following described property, to wit:

Legal Description: Being a tract of land approximately 9.5171 acres in the W.D.C.
Hall League, Abstract No. 70, Brazoria County, Texas and being the residueofthat
tract sold by None Gay Carr to Ross A. McClendon, as described indeedrecorded
under Brazoria county Clerk’s file No. 95-022654.

General Location: Located at 2810 Dixie Farm Road, Pearland, Texas

APPROVAL PROCESS: After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone
change application will be considered as follows:

Planning and Zoning Commission: January 18, 2010*
City Council for First Reading: February 08, 2010*
City Council for Second Reading: February 22, 2010*

(*dates subject to change if item is tabled)

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The applicant is requestingapprovalof a
proposed planned development of a retirement residence for 55 and older. The first joint
workshop was scheduled on October 19, 2009; however, there was no quorum and the
workshopcould not be conducted. The workshopwas re-scheduled for November2, 2009,
and at that time there were no comments or concerns expressed by City Council or
Planning and Zoning. Following November 2, 2009, a Joint Public Hearing was scheduled
for November 16, 2009. During that meeting, comments and concerns were mentioned;
however, It was discovered that the locationmap as submittedwas inaccurate.Since it was
possible that not all adjacent property owners were properly notified, the Joint Public
Hearing for the zone change was considered null and void. Another Joint Public Hearing
was has been scheduled for January 18, 2010.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 2

Staff had performed a preliminary review for the applicant prior to the
workshop on November 2, 2009 and had the following comments:

1) Please provide a vicinity map.

2) Will this proposed development receive tax credits?

3) Are handicapped individuals under 55 years of age permitted to live at this
residence?

4) Please Remove the following on the first page “of Retirement Housing for the
Elderly” and add “The entire site is designed to conform to the current Unified
Development Code” All areas not addressed in the Planned Development
Document shall meet all the requirementsof the currentUnified DevelopmentCode.

5) Underline “except a kitchen is not included in the suites”.

6) Underline “provide private van transportation for their use”.

7) Common open space needs to be shaded or crosshatched on the site plan and
meet the Unified Development Code requirements: common open space must be at
least 80 feet wide and at least 113,400 square feet must be provided (calculated at
a rate of 900 square feet per dwelling unit.)

8) Show future parking spaces on the site plan and show cottage/duplex parking.

9) Height-state what the maximum height is requiredby the Unified DevelopmentCode
and what is proposed. The maximum height permitted in the proposed Multi-Family
Zoning District is 35 feet.

10) Parking-state what is required by the Unified Development Code, then what is
proposed. If there is a deviation, please provide background information to justify
your reduction in parking.

11) Add page numbers.

12) Remove the yellow highlighted rows. This appears to be a proofing error.

13) Under Traffic Generation-state how this doesn’t impact any local collector street
and compare this with other types of development that would be permitted at this
site.

14) A tree survey and disposition plan is required.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 3

15) Provide storm water detention calculations for the engineering department to
review.

16) A fee in lieu of parkland dedication fee of $750.00 per unit, $96,000.00 (128 units x
$750.00) is required.

17) The north end drive way is a dead end with no turn around. The north fire lane is
made of grass and blocked with trees in the lane going to Dixie Farm. If the entire
facility is sprinkled a one way drive way can be developed. If the development goes
over 200 units, a second remote driveway would be required.

Staff had the following additional comments after the November 2, 2009
workshop:

1) Page 3 - for proposed setbacks: remove Specific Deviation Heading above
proposed setbacks. If they are the same as underlying MF Zoning and meet
these guidelines then it is not a deviation. Please show in a chart what the
required setbacks are for the zoning district, and then show what setbacks the
planned development will be providing in the PD Document.

2) Page 4 - Under Parking, please list this as a Deviation (see comment above). In
a chart, show what is required according to the MF Parking Standards and then
show what is provided. Please state the difference and that you are requesting a
deviation from (?) parking spaces to the following (?) parking spaces. In order to
provide and accurate calculation, you will also need to provide how many 2
bedroom units and how many 1 bedroom units there are in the main building.
Please provide a statement of support for your deviation from parking which
should include research on what has recently been approved in Pearland and
surrounding areas.

3) Request a deviation for the use and a deviation for the density as stated above.

4) State what the height of the Atrium Cupola Architectural Feature is. Then state
the distance you will need for a deviation. Such as, the maximum height
permitted for this zoning district is 35 feet and we are requesting a deviation of
10 feet to permit a 45 foot cupola.

5) Page 5 - please add under the note, that the development will be in accordance
with the site plan and all attached exhibits. Remove all previous site plans from
the PD document if they are not the updated site plan.

6) Add the storm water calculations to the PD Document and label it as an exhibit.

7) Common open space needs to be shown on the site plan and the addressed in
the PD Document. Common open space needs to be at least 80 feet wide in



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 4

order to qualify for common open space. Please cross hatch these open space
areas on the site plan for ease in identification.

8) Provide a landscaping plan.

9) Please incorporate all 17 preliminary review comments in a revised PD
Documents.

The joint public hearing was conducted on November 16, 2009. During that
meeting, the following comments and concerns were mentioned:

1) City Council, Planning and Zoning, and Staff would like to see additional parking.
The amount of parking is not sufficient for the proposed use. Parking for the
suites/units are the only parking spaces provided. Please provide a breakdown of
parking for the other uses on the premises such as: the common areas, the salon,
recreational areas, and the dining hall, visitor parking etc. In the past, similar uses
have been approved with 1.3 spaces for one bedroom units, and 1.75 spaces for 2
bedroom units, and 1 space per 100 square feet of gross floor area for a clubhouse.

2) On page 7, please remove the statement “approved by the city”. Some of the
locations stated in the chart are not within the City of Pearland limits.

3) City Council was concerned and inquired about the evacuation plan.

4) City Council had asked how many elevators are located on site and what their exact
locations are and whether or not they are adequate.

5) Another concern from City Council was over saturation of the market. Please
provide information regarding other similar facilities in the City of Pearland and the
market need. The council was also concerned about future occupancy when the
population cohorts are different and the elderly population ratio decreases.

6) Traffic flow was also a concern. The use of the right in right out driveways did not
provide access for the north flowing traffic to enter and anyone needing to exit and
head north would have to travel some distance south and then u-turn. Please
address this issue. Why is the driveway not aligned to Sycamore Drive?

7) The Council voiced concern over only one entry into the site.

8) Council voiced concerns regarding buffering from adjoining residential uses, the
type of fencing and the width of the buffers.

9) Council and P & Z cited other sites like Province Village as being a more
appropriate area for this use.

10) Council wanted the Hampton Development information reviewed for their parking.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 5

11) What are the state requirements for generators?

CURRENT PROJECT SUMMARY: The subject property is located at 2810 Dixie Farm
Road and is approximately 9.5 acres. The applicant proposes a 2 story complex with 120
units and 4 duplex cottages (8 units) for the more active residents towards the rear of the
property as shown on the site plan submitted and as stated in the Planned Development
Document. The 120 units in the 2 story building will not have kitchens and will be a
combination of studios, and 1 & 2 bedroom units. There are 2 units for the Manager and
Co-Manager included on site. This is a retirement residence where the residents do not
need medical or nursing care, but need support services such as common laundry, van
service, and restaurant style dining.

The subject property is currently zoned Single Family Residential-1. The applicant
proposes a Planned Development with an underlying zoning of Multi Family Zoning with a
maximum of 13.24 units per acre.

The PD Document as submitted states that a total of 170 parkingspaces shall be provided.
The current unified development code requires 253 parking spaces for this project as
proposed. This is a retirement residence use and the current Unified Development code
does not have a parking category to calculate spaces for a retirement residence use. The
parking requirements for Multi-Family Zoning were used to calculate required parking
spaces for this proposed project. The applicant is requesting a deviation of 83 parking
spaces. The applicant is proposing 170 parking spaces for the dwelling units only and the
current Unified Development code requires 253 parking spaces. There are no square
footage calculations provided for other areas or visitor parking.

The applicant has held one neighborhood meeting and incorporated the suggested
changes in the proposed site plan and Planned Development Document prior to the
submission of application and supporting documents.

The applicant has responded to all comments and concerns, and attached is a response
letter addressing each of the numbered questions above, a revised PD Document, and
calculations for storm water detention have also been attached.

COMMON OPEN SPACE: The Unified Development Code requires that common open
space must be at least 80 feet wide and at least 115,200 square feet must be provided
(calculated at a rate of 900 square feet per dwelling unit). The applicant provides for 128
units at a rate of 900 square feet of open space, which equals 115,200 square feet of
common open space. The site plan as submitted shows that some of the areas calculated
for common open space do not meet the 80 foot width requirement.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 6

AMENITIES ARE LISTED AS FOLLOWS:

 Extensive Landscaping
 Integrated network of walking paths
 Craft Exercise Room
 Patio Area with A Cabana and Pool
 Raised Planter Beds
 Horse Shoe Pit
 Seating Benches
 Circular Landscaped Benches
 Pool House
 Fountain and Water Features
 Transportation Services for Residents
 Retention Water Features

THE APPLICANT IS REQUESTING THE FOLLOWING DEVIATIONS:

Use: The specific use of retirement residence is not a permitted use in the Single Family
Residential-1 (R-1) Zoning District.

Density: The number of units permitted in the R-1 Zoning District is 3.2 units per acre,and
30 units would be permitted at this location. The applicant proposes 128 units with an
approved Planned Development with underlying zoning of Multi-Family (MF). The MF
Zoning District would allow 16 units per acre or 152 units at this location. As proposed, the
applicant shows 13.2 units per acre, which are 10 units per acre above the allowable
density for the R-1 Zoning Districts.

Parking:

Unit Mix Number of
Suites

Code Required
Parking

Proposed
Code

Proposed
Parking
Spaces

Studio 31 1.5 46.5 65% = 0.97 30
One
Bedroom 72 2 144 65% = 1.3 94

Two
Bedroom 17 2.5 42.5 70% = 1.75 30

Cottage 8 2.5 20 80% = 2 16
Totals 128 253 170

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 7

Zoning Land Use

North Single Family Residential-2
(R-2)

Single Family Residential

South Single Family Residential-1
(R-1)

Single Family Residential

East Single Family Residential-2
(R-2)

Single Family Residential

West Single Family Residential-1
(R-1)

Vacant/Undeveloped

CONFORMANCE TOTHE UNIFIEDDEVELOPMENTCODE (UDC): The subject property
is currently zoned as Single Family Residential-1 (R-1). The minimum lot size for the Single
Family Residential-1 (R-1) Zoning District is 8,800square feet, the minimum lot width is 80
feet, and the minimum lot depth is 90 feet. The subject property exceeds these minimum
requirements, as the property is approximately 9.5 acres in size, and has lot widths of
approximately 424 feet, and the lot depth of approximately 965 feet. The proposed use is
not in conformance with the current Unified Development Code.

The applicant will be required to comply with all other requirements of the Unified
Development Code.

PLATTING STATUS: The property has not been platted.

CONFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Comprehensive Plan (2004
update and adopted on July 26, 2004) recommends “Low Density Residential” for the
subject property and the surroundingproperties. The Comprehensive Plan further indicates
that the appropriate zoning districts for the “Low Density Residential Use” are the
Residential Estate (RE) and the Single Family Residential-1 (R-1) zoning districts. The
proposed use in not in conformance with the comprehensive plan, however: the
comprehensive plan does not have a specific use category that addresses a retirement
residence.

CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN: The subject property has frontage
on Dixie Farm Road, a major thoroughfare with an ultimate right-of-way of 120 feet. The
applicant has not had the property platted and all necessary dedications will be made at
the time of platting.

AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES: The subject parcel is not served by public water and
sewer.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 8

IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:

Traffic: Traffic patterns for this developmentwill not adversely affect the surroundingsingle
family residences or uses. A traffic impact analysis has been performed and is attached as
a separate document to the Planned Development document.

Buffers: 25 foot landscaping buffers between all single family residential uses are required
on the north, west, and south property lines, and a 30 foot landscaping buffer is required
along the east property line where the subject property has frontage on a major
thoroughfare. The applicant has provided such, however; a masonry fence is requiredwith
a 25 foot buffer and the site plan and planned development document states a 6 foot high
wooden fence.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION: Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration. A legal notice of public hearing
was published in the local newspaper, and a Zoning Sign was placed on the subject
property.

OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORTOF PROPOSEDREQUEST: Staff has receiveda phone
call from a nearby resident on January 5, 2009, stating that they were in opposition to the
proposed zone change request. He stated that he would like to attend the Joint Public
Hearing and bring his neighbors.

The applicant has responded, and attached is a response letter addressing each of the
numbered questions above, a revised PD Document, and calculations for storm water
detention have also been attached.

STAFF HAS THE FOLLOWING OUTSTANDING CONCERNS:

1) The parking deviation requested does not conform to what has been approved in
the past. Only the one bedroom and two bedroom proposed parking is in line
within the guidelines that the City has approved previously. On page 5, please
add the future parking spaces to the planned development document as shown
on the site plan. In addition, common areas, the salon, recreational areas, and
the dining hall, visitor parking have not been provided for.

2) An evacuation plan should be submitted prior to the building plan submission
and this should be added as part of the Planned Unit Development Document.
Please see the applicant’s response in the attached memo.

3) The applicant is proposing only one centrally located elevator. The applicant
responded by stating, “ residents preferred to use the main stair case leading
directly in front of the dining area, and that history has proven that this one
elevator is adequate for our type and design of facility.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z

Page 9

4) On page 3, for common open space a minimum of 80 feet wide is required in
order to consider this part of common open space. There are some green
shaded areas on the site plan that do not meet these requirements. In addition,
please change the wording in the chart to “Required Common Open Space”.

5) On page 3, for remaining pervious land, the required landscaping for this zoning
district is 15% and the provided landscaping area shown is 61%, which includes
common open space and retention. This may not be counted as required
landscaping.

6) On page2-3, and throughout the document, please remove the wording
conceptual for all site plans or landscaping plans.

7) On page 2, the façade is listed as brick and horizontal siding. This location is in
the Corridor Overlay District and a deviation from the 100% masonry requirement
needs to be requested.

8) On page 3, under fencing and screening, a 6’ high wood fence is proposed with
the landscaping setbacks. A masonry wall is required or setbacks can be
increased to 30 feet with a 100% opaque vegetative screen. A deviationneeds to
be requested for this.

9) On page 2, for the proposed setbacks, please clarify the setbacks. For example,
the setbacks for parkingand outside storage are to be measured from what point?

10) On page 5, please add the future parking spaces to the planned development
document as shown on the site plan. In addition, common areas, the salon,
recreational areas, and the dining hall, visitor parking have not been provided for.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: If the above comments are addressed, staff recommends
approval of the zone change as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons:

1) The Planned Development Retirement Residence can be viewed as an appropriate
buffer to the residential uses on the north, east, and west of the subject property
from the commercial uses that are located further to the south.

2) The proposed zone change will permit the applicant to develop this property as a
Planned Development Retirement Residence and the proposed development will
meet all the requirements of the current Unified Development Code.



JPH 01-18-10
2009-15Z
Page 10

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:

 Zone Change Application
 Vicinity Map
 Property Ownership Map
 Property Owner Notification List
 Zoning Map
 Future Land Use Plan
 Aerial Photograph
 Other Maps and Related Documents



VICINITY MAP
ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD

ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009-15Z

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD, PEARLAND, TX



NORTH



ABUTTER MAP

ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD

ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009-15Z

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD, PEARLAND, TX



NORTH



Property Owner List

2810 Dixie Farm Road/ Pearland Retirement Residence

Zone Change No. 2009-15Z

ANDRIACCO SHANNA L 1612 CYPRESS HOLLOW PEARLAND TX 77581

BRAZORIA CO DRAINAGE #4 4805 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BROWN MILES S & JULIE
1605 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BRYAN DOUG S & LAURA 2707 CRANE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

BRYAN DOUG S & LAURA 2707 CRANE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

CALVILLO NOE LEE & MARIA 1615 RAYBURN LN PEARLAND TX 77581

CITY OF PEARLAND 3519 LIBERTY DR PEARLAND TX 77581

CLARK B R 2608 COCOA LN PASADENA TX 77502

CONFIDENTIAL 2810 DIXIE FARM RD PEARLAND TX 77581

CONFIDENTIAL 2810 DIXIE FARM RD PEARLAND TX 77581

CONFIDENTIAL 1604 CYPRESS HOLLOW PEARLAND TX 77581

CONFIDENTIAL 2810 DIXIE FARM RD PEARLAND TX 77581

COUCH WILLIAM DALE 11931 WICKCHESTER LN HOUSTON TX 77043

CRAFT AMIE MARIE
1601 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

DIXIE WOODS HOMEOWNERS ASSN 957 NASA PKWY HOUSTON TX 77058

EDWARDS KENNETH HAROLD & 1506 SILVER MAPLE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

EDWARDS STEVEN LANE
1617 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

FEIST TERRY D
1609 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

FERGUSON WILLIAM 1621 RAYBURN LN PEARLAND TX 77581

FLEMING ROGER J & TAMMY J 2706 ELM HOLLOW ST PEARLAND TX 77581

GARZA RUBEN JR & SANDRA
1614 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

GONZALEZ TINNA
1615 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581



Property Owner List

2810 Dixie Farm Road/ Pearland Retirement Residence

Zone Change No. 2009-15Z

HIDALGO JUAN LUIS & 1605 RAYBURN LN PEARLAND TX 77581

JASSO ALEXANDER & CARMEN JASSO
2704 ELM HOLLOW
STREET PEARLAND TX 77581

LEWIS BERRY J 618 ENCHANTED TR SPRING TX 77388

LOWERY RICHARD 2701 CRANE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

MADDUX STEVEN & TAMARA 2611 CRANE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

MANCUSO J A 2703 CRANE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

MANIET RICHARD & JODIE
1610 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

MCLEMORE DAVID B 2705 CRANE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

MORAN GREGORY D & STEPHANIE E 1609 RAYBURN LN PEARLAND TX 77581

MORAN JESSE A & RHONDA K 1506 SYCAMORE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

NORWOOD MARCUS
1611 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

NYAIRO ALFRED K & ELENA N 1505 SYCAMORE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

OFFENHAUSER DENISE J & OLIVER
RICHARD W 2709 WALNUT HOLLOW ST PEARLAND TX 77581

OVERBECK BEVERLY J
1603 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

PHILLIPS JIMMY R & STEPHANIE
1618 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581

RAMIREZ GILBERTO SR 1505 SILVER MAPLE LN PEARLAND TX 77584

RIOS CAROL
1606 CYPRESS HOLLOW
ST PEARLAND TX 77581



ZONING MAP
ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD

ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009-15Z

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD, PEARLAND, TX



NORTH



FUTURE LAND USE
ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD

FUTURE LAND USE MAP
ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009-15Z

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD, PEARLAND, TX



NORTH



AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD

ZONE CHANGE NO. CUP 2009-15Z

LOCATED AT 2810 DIXIE FARM ROAD, PEARLAND, TX



NORTH





1

I. INTRODUCTION – PEARLAND RETIREMENT RESIDENCE 

Site Description 
The subject parcel is located at 2810 Dixie Farm Road. This site is rectangular in 
shape with a frontage of 424’ (+/-) on the westerly side of Dixie Farm Road 
surrounded by residential developments and a General Commercial (GC) site 
that is on the easterly side of Dixie Farm Road. The home sites bordering the 
south of the property are fronting on Rayburn Street, the lots along the west side 
of the site front on Crane Drive and the properties on north side of the site front 
along Cypress Hollow Street. The Dixie Woods subdivision is directly across 
Dixie Farm Road from the proposed site. Abutting the Dixie Woods development 
to the south is the GC site that fronts on Dixie Farm Road and E. Broadway 
Street.

Current Zoning: R-1 – Single Family Residential 
Current Use: Boarding Stables, Equestrian Center (Krazy K Stables) 

  CAD #: 5410-0024-000 

Proposed Development 
Harvest Development Corp. proposes a PD to develop a 118-suite plus a 
manager and co manager suites, 2 story congregate retirement residence along 
with 4, one story duplex retirement cottages (8 units).  The entire site is designed 
to conform to the Uniform Development Code.   This development shall be 
marked and operated as an Independent Living Facility for residents age 55 and 
older. Our concept is designed for residents, age 55 and older who are still 
ambulatory.  We do offer some daily support with no medical or nursing care.
Handicap individuals under the age of 55 are not allowed to reside at this facility.
We cater to the retired lifestyle.  This project will not be low income or receive tax 
credit.  Private rooms afford the advantages of independent living while the 
services included provide support, security and friendship.  The private suites 
include studio, one and two bedroom versions.  See Exhibit C for floor plans.  
Each is similar to a conventional dwelling unit except a kitchen is not included in 
the suites. Services include three prepared meals daily, housekeeping, 
laundering, private bus transportation and various activities.  Staff is “in house” 
24 hours a day.  The monthly rent payment covers the private room, all services 
and utilities.  Typically our resident will be a single person in their late 70’s or 
80’s.  Approximately 10% of the rooms will be rented by couples making a total 
building population of 130 plus and additional 16 residents in the cottages. Fewer 
than 15% of the residents will be driving their own cars. Because most of our 
residents do not drive, we provide private van transportation for their use.  The 
van is available to take the residents to places they need to visit, such as banks, 
medical offices, shopping areas, etc. Neighborhood compatibility is achieved in 
the site planning and building design. The wing ends and building center step 
down from two to one story.  This arrangement provides for privacy and a gentle 
change of scale.  Care is taken to minimize the impact to the existing community.



2

The exterior siding materials will include brick and horizontal siding.  The roof will 
be architectural composition shingle.  See exhibits D and E for a color board and 
perspectives.

The building interior design has common areas for a variety of uses.  There will 
be a common dining room and kitchen for shared meals.  There will be a multi-
purpose room, beauty shop, crafts room, TV room, lounges and an exercise 
room.  The circulation will be organized around a central atrium.  Residents will 
be able to contact the manager with both emergency pull cords and voice 
communications in each room.  

Access shall be provided from the existing location on Dixie Farm Road. There 
will be no impact to any local collector streets. The development will be in 
compliance with the attached conceptual site plan, elevations and other 
documents. Minor changes shall be approved by Planning Director. All 
requirements of the UDC shall be met. 

Acreage
The developed parcel is 9.5171 acres in size, horse boarding stables. 

Purpose of the PD district request 
 The request for this development is to create a PD Planned Development on the 

existing site within the existing R-1 – Single Family Residential. The PD – 
Planned Development shall have an underlying MF Multiple Family base zoning 
for the development of Retirement Residence on the entire site. 

II ZONING AND LAND USE 

Proposed Setbacks (same as underlying MF zoning – Section 2.4.2.10 & the 
PD overlay Sec. 2.4.5.1) 

 R1 MF Proposed Setback 
Minimum Front 

Yard
25 ft 25 ft 200 ft 

Minimum Side 
Yards

7’-6” ft 15 ft 60 ft main - 30 ft accessory 

Minimum Rear 
Yard

30 ft 25 ft 200 ft main - 30 ft duplex 

Minimum off-street 
parking

30 ft 30 ft 150 ft 

Minimum outside 
storage

150 ft 150 ft 600 ft 



3

III. DESIGN STANDARDS  

           Outdoor Activities or Uses 
No outdoor commercial activities our uses shall be permitted per the Unified 
Development Code. 

Fences & Screening 
There will be a 30’ landscape buffer and 6’ high wood fence adjacent to the 
residential use parcel as per the Unified Development Code. 

Remaining Pervious Land 

Required landscaped open area Provided landscaped open area
15% 61% (open space & retention) 

Common open space requirements will be in accordance with the common open 
space requirements of the underlying MF zone. Section 2.4.2.10(g) of the UDC 
for 128 units as shown on attached conceptual site plan. 

Required open space required Provided open space 
128 units x 900 sq ft = 115,200 sq ft 141,600 sq ft 

Access
Provided in accordance with the EDCM 

Access shall be provided from the existing location on Dixie Farm Road. 
The development will be in compliance with the attached conceptual site 
(see exhibit A) plan, elevations and other documents. Minor changes shall 
be approved by Planning Director. All requirements of the UDC shall be 
met.

Proposed PD – Will comply with the EDCM (see conceptual site plan). 

Please Note:
All requirements of the Uniform Development Code will be met other than those 
changes and deviations specifically approved as part of the Planned 
Development approval.  The development will be in accordance with the site plan 
and all attached exhibits. 

Height
“The vertical distance measured from grade at the front of the building to the 
highest point of a flat roof, to the deck line of a mansard roof, or to the mean 
height level between eaves and ridge for a gable, hip or gambrel roof” (UDC
5.1.1.1 #58) 

Maximum height permitted in MF District Proposed height 
35 feet 26 feet 



4

Please refer to the enclosed site plan (exhibit A) and other drawings regarding 
the proposed development standards 

Area Regulations 
 MF R1 Proposed 

Minimum Lot Size 20,000 sq ft 8,800 sq ft 414,563 sq ft 
Minimum Lot 

Width
125 ft 80 ft 424 ft 

Minimum Lot 
Depth

 90 ft 965 ft 

Maximum Lot 
Coverage

40% 60% 39.8% 

Proposed Dedications 
 Any additional easements, rights of ways or agreements to accommodate rights 
of way, utilities and services to the site will be accommodated. 

A fee of $96,000 will be paid in lieu of parkland dedication.  This was calculated 
at $750.00 per 128 units. This covers the 118 resident suites, manager, and co-
manager suites in the main building and the 8 cottage units. 

IV. DEVIATIONS 

Deviation – Use 
The property is currently zoned R-1 – Single Family Residential.  The property is 
bounded single family residential homes on all sides, R-1 Zoning to the South 
and R-2 (Single Family Residential – 2) to the west, north and across Dixie Farm 
Road to the east. The Southeast corner of the site is across Dixie Farm Road 
from a Large GC – General Commercial District that also fronts E Broadway 
Street. These residential subdivisions are fully developed with mature 
landscaping and complete infrastructure. The GC site is partially developed. 

PD Overlay Zoning  
The proposed R1-PD with a underlying base zoning MF, Multiple-Family 
Residential District (Sec. 2.4.2.10) site. This site is also subject to the Dixie Farm 
Road Overly District. 

Use Acres % of Total Acres Zoning District 
Multiple Family 9.5171 100% R1 
Landscape and 5.81 61% R1 

Detention Space 
Internal Circulation 1.51 4.90% R1 

(Drives & Parking) 



5

Deviation – Density 
Proposed Density (same as underlying MF zoning – Section 2.4.2.10 & the PD 
overlay Sec. 2.4.5.1) 

 Density Ratio Max Unit Allowed 
RI 3.2 30 
MF 16 152.2 
Proposed 13.45 128 

Proposed: 
 Total Residential Units   128 Units 

  118 Retirement Suites + manager and co-manager suites
    8 Cottage Units 
 Total Acreage    9.5171 acres 

Density Ratio 128 Units on 9.5171 acres = 13.45 Units per Acre 

Deviation - Parking 
Minimum Parking required in the Unified Development Code is 234. 
*25% deferred to future as per Section 4.2.1.3(k) of UDC 

Unit Mix Number 
of Suites 

Code Required 
Parking 

Proposed
Code 

Proposed
Parking 

Studio 31 1.5 46.5 65% = 0.97 30 
One Bedroom 71 2 142 65% = 1.3 93 
Two Bedroom 16 2.5 40 70% = 1.75 28 

Manager 1 2.5 2.5 70% = 1.75 2 
Co-Manager 1 2 2 65% = 1.3 1 

Cottage 8 2.5 20 80% = 2 16 
Totals 128   253     170 

Because most of our residents do not drive, we provide private van transportation 
for their use.  The van is available to take the residents to places they need to 
visit, such as banks, medical offices, shopping areas, etc.  Therefore we are 
proposing a parking deviation allowing the ratio of 1.3 spaces per suite.

Normally we request a parking ratio of .60 spaces per suite.   The principals of 
Harvest Development LLC have developed over 300 retirement residences.  
Experience from this extensive portfolio has shown that .60 parking space per 
suite is adequate for our residents, staff and visitors.



6

The parking ratio allows us to increase landscaping and open space to create a 
better residential environment for our residents and adjacent property owners. 

The following table shows the parking provided in other facilities we have 
developed in Texas. 

FACILITY NAME ADDRESS SUITES

GARDEN

SUITES COTTAGES

TOTAL

SUITES

PARKING

SPACES

PER

SUITE

Arlington Plaza

6801 W. Poly Webb Rd.,

Arlington, TX 76016 96 0 0 96 68 0.71

Fox Run 2315 Little Rd., Arlington, TX 76016 102 0 0 102 54 0.53

Englewood Estates 2603 Jones Rd., Austin, TX 78745 110 0 0 110 64 0.58

Bentley, The 3362 Forest Lane, Dallas, TX 75234 109 8 0 117 81 0.69

Whiterock Court

8900 Block of Whiterock Trail

Dallas, TX 75204 115 0 0 115 78 0.68

Rio Norte 1941 Saul Kleinfeld Dr., El Paso TX 79936 110 5 4 119 63 0.57

South Colleyvine

Ranch 2300 Pool Rd., Grapevine, TX 76071 115 0 0 115 79 0.69

Ventura Place 3026 54th St., Lubbock, TX 79413 112 18 6 136 96 0.71

Polo Park 2100 Castleford Rd., Midland, TX 79706 107 0 0 107 65 0.61

Brook Ridge 1001 W. Ridge Rd., Pharr, TX 78577 107 0 0 107 67 0.63

Cottonwood

Estates

1940 West Spring Creek Parkway,

Plano, TX 75086 113 0 0 113 68 0.6

El Dorado

714 W. Arapaho Rd.,

Richardson, TX 75080 102 0 0 102 53 0.52

Cowhorn Creek

Estates

5353 Cowhorn Creek Rd., T

exarkanna, TX 75503 112 0 0 112 67 0.6

Rosewood Estates 505 Rice Rd., Tyler,TX 75703 110 0 0 110 54 0.49

Lakeshore Estates 3209 Village Green Dr., Waco, TX 76710 110 5 0 115 70 0.61

Highland Estates

1500 N. Lakeline Blvd.,

Cedar Park TX 78613 118 0 0 118 81 0.69

Copperfield

Estates

16820 West Road,

Copperfield TX 118 0 0 118 88 0.75

Harbor Place 5518 Lipes Blvd., Corpus Christi, TX 78413 118 0 12 130 98 0.75

Dogwood Estates 2820 Wind River Lane, Denton, TX 76210 116 0 0 116 68 0.59

Pinewood Hills

3901 Kirkpatrick Lane,

Flower Mound TX 75028 115 0 0 115 70 0.61

Cypress Woods

2755 Chestnut Ridge Drive,

Kingwood, TX 76051 118 0 0 118 74 0.63

Parkwood

Meadows

310 Chiholm Trail,

Round Rock, TX 78681 118 0 0 118 72 0.61

Paradise Springs 5600 Cypresswood Drive, Spring, TX 77379 118 0 7 125 104 0.83



7

This table shows the parking ratio for other similar developments. 

Name of Facility Number of Units Parking Ratio  
Towne Park, Kingsland 76 .75 
Greens on Turtle Creek 84 1.38 
Birdsong Place Villas 96 1.33 
Gardens at Friendswood Lake 114 .74 

The City of Dallas has a required parking ratio of 0.7 spaces per unit plus one 
space per 300 square feet of floor area not in a dwelling unit or suite. 

The City of Houston has a required parking ratio of 0.75 spaces per unit and 
additional spaces for supporting use and staff. 

The City of Baytown has approved a parking ratio of 0.75 spaces per unit for a 
similar development. 

Please refer to the enclosed site plan and other drawings regarding the proposed 
development standards 

V.      Overview and Summary 

Existing Zoning:   R-1 Single Family Residential  
Proposed Zoning: PD – Planned Development / MF underlying 

base zoning 
Land Area:   9.5171 acres  
Existing Use:   Boarding Stables, Equestrian Center 
Proposed Use: 118-suite retirement residence + 4 duplex 

retirement cottages (8 units) 
Proposed Parking: 170 total spaces consisting of 115 open +17

future open, 18 covered for the suites, 4 
handicap accessible, 8 covered cottage 
spaces, and 8 cottage driveway parking 
spaces 

Impervious Surface Cover:  165,211 Sq. Ft. / 39.8% 

Phasing 
This project is intended to be developed together in its entreaty and phasing the 
project in not planned 



8

VI. AMENITIES 

The site is to be extensively landscaped.  Usable outdoor spaces will include a 
large amount of lawn and landscape areas. The landscaping will include raised 
beds of varying levels for ornamental, flower and vegetable gardening made 
available for use and enjoyment of our residence.  Special features of this site 
will include a horseshoe court in the cottage common area and a large unique 
water feature located amidst the retirement cottages, all adding to the park like 
setting. An integrated network of walking paths, 6 feet in width, will provide our 
residence with an excellent opportunity for daily exercise. The walking paths will 
be complemented with benches and respite areas throughout as well as 
connecting to all exits of the building. There will be a large partially covered patio 
off of the craft/exercise room. The patio area along with the cabana and pool 
come together to create an oasis like atmosphere and serving to extend and 
expand the living area to this outside attraction 

 Horse Shoe Pit (1) 
 Seating Benches (7 around site paths/courtyards)  
 Circular Landscaped Benches (2 on site)  
 Raised Planter beds (8 for residence)  
 Swimming Pool  
 Pool House (1)  
 Fountains & Water Features (4) 
 Van garage (1) 
 Retention Water Feature 

VII. EXHIBITS 

Site Plan    Exhibit “A” 
  Vicinity Map    Exhibit “B” 
  Suite Floor Plans   Exhibit “C” 
  Color Board    Exhibit “D” 

Perspectives    Exhibit “E” 
ALTA Survey    Exhibit “F” 

  Topographical Survey  Exhibit “G” 
  Tree Survey    Exhibit “H” 
  Stormwater Detention Calcs Exhibit “I” 
  Landscape Plan   Exhibit “J” 
  Open Space Plan   Exhibit “K” 

VIII. JUSTIFICATION 

We respectfully request consideration of a Planned Unit Residential 
Development for a 9.5171-acre site at 2810 Dixie Farm Road.  This designation 



9

is sought to allow development of a 118 suite plus a manager and co manager 
suites retirement residence and 4 duplex retirement cottages. This site will 
provide a positive, quality, low impact additional to the local neighborhood and 
the Pearland community. 

Considerable effort has been made over the past several months to gather 
information.  This has allowed us to present a proposal that will create a valuable 
addition to the community.

This site is ideally suited for our senior housing use.  The site is in close proximity 
to services such as shopping, recreation and medical needs while still being 
within an established residential area. 

As stated in Chapter 8 of the Pearland Municipal Code, “the purpose an overlay 
planned development district (PD) is to provide for the development of land as an 
integral unit of single or mixed use in accordance with a PD Design Plan that 
may include uses, regulation and other requirements that vary from provisions of 
other zoning districts. PD Districts are intended to implement generally the goals 
and objectives of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. PD Districts are also intended 
to encourage flexible and creative planning to ensure the compatibility of land 
uses, to allow for the adjustment of changes demands to meet the current needs 
of the community and to in a higher quality development for the community that 
would result from the use of conventional zoning districts. The Harvest 
Retirement proposal would meet changing demands and the current needs of the 
Pearland community.

This project offers benefits, which include: 

 Large open spaces and generous setbacks.  Over 60% of the site will be 
landscaped open space providing large open spaces and ample setbacks to 
create a park-like setting, and help buffer neighboring properties. 

 Quiet Senior Residential Use – The proposed retirement residence has 118 
suites, which include studios, one bedroom, and two bedroom types.

The suites do not have kitchens and are not considered full dwelling units.
They are different from conventional senior apartment units with full kitchens, 
in that the density effect would be negligible.  In addition, only about 10 
percent of the suites will be occupied by couples, keeping the overall building 
population low.  This is complemented by 4 duplex “cottages” (8 units) which 
are approximately 1100 square feet in size. The cottages do include a full 
kitchen and single car garage for the slightly more active senior at our facility.
The cottage residences do receive the transportation, activity and 
housekeeping services and have the option of receiving meals at the 
retirement residence if they choose. This project will not create the problems 



10

typically associated with higher density developments, such as traffic, noise 
or increased demand on public services. 

 Low Traffic Generation – Our project will generate approximately 250 trips per 
day with less than 30 peak hour trips.  Please see attached Harvest Concept 
Summary.

 Increases Local Tax Base – This project is privately funded with no publicly 
funded assistance.  This development will not receive tax credits. 

 Low Impact on Public Services - Including parks, schools, libraries, and 
transportation system. 

 Fulfills Need for Retirement Housing - Our research has found that there is a 
strong need for the unique Harvest program in this area.  It would 
complement the other choices available in Pearland.

IX. CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, we feel that this site is ideally suited for our use and would be a 
nice addition to the Dixie Farm Road area and the existing and future 
development for the area. 

Thank you for your consideration. 





Pearland, TX 

N

Exhibit B – Vicinity Map 



S
tu

d
io

 S
u
it
e
 –

 5
0

0
 s

q
 f
t 

O
n
e
 B

e
d
ro

o
m

 S
u
it
e
 –

 7
0

0
 s

q
 f
t 

E
xh

ib
it
 C

 -
 S

u
it
e
 F

lo
o
r 

P
la

n
s
 

1



T
w
o
 B

e
d
ro

o
m

 S
u
it
e
 –

 9
0

0
 s

q
 f
t 

D
u
p
le

x 
C

o
tt

a
g
e
 S

u
it
e
 –

 1
2

5
0

 s
q
 f
t 

2



E
xh

ib
it
 D

 –
 C

o
lo

r 
B
o
a
rd

 



E
xh

ib
it
 E

 -
 P

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
ve

s

1

V
ie

w
 o

f 
E
n
tr

y
 

V
ie

w
 o

f 
W

in
g
 E

n
d
 



2

V
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 





















  Pearland Retirement Residence  
  Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 

Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
December 21, 2009 
 
Angela Gantuah 
Senior Planner 
City of Pearland 
3523 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 
 
 
Re:       Pearland Retirement Residence Planned Development,  

  Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 
 
These are responses to the Staff’s, City Councils’, and P & Z’s updated comments from 
the November 16, 2009 meeting.  
 
1.  City Council, Planning and Zoning, and Staff would like to see additional parking. The 
amount of parking is not sufficient for the proposed use. Parking for the suites/units are 
the only parking spaces provided. Please provide a breakdown of parking for the other 
uses on the premises such as: the common areas, the salon, recreational areas, and the 
dining hall, visitor parking etc. In the past, similar uses have been approved with 1.3 
spaces for one bedroom units, and 1.75 spaces for 2 bedroom units, and 1 space per 
100 square feet of gross floor area for a clubhouse. 

 
Please see revised site plan and chart below for the proposed parking ratio. 
 

Unit Mix Number of 
Suites 

Code Required 
Parking 

Proposed 
Code 

Proposed 
Parking 

Studio 31 1.5 46.5 65% = 0.97 30 
One 

Bedroom 
72 2 144 65% =  1.3 94 

Two 
Bedroom 

17 2.5 42.5 70% = 1.75 30 

Cottage 8 2.5 20 80% =  2 16 
Totals 128   253     170 

 
 
Note that most of our residents do not drive, we provide private van transportation 
for their use. Van transportation is included in the rental price.  The van is available 
at all times to take the residents to places they need to visit, such as banks, 
medical offices, shopping areas, etc.  Therefore we are proposing a parking 
deviation allowing the ratio of 1.3 spaces per suite.  



  Pearland Retirement Residence  
  Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 

Page 2 of 5 

 
2.     On page 7, please remove the statement “approved by the city”. Some of the 
locations stated in the chart are not in the City of Pearland limits. 

 
Please note that we have revised our Planned Development Statement to reflect 
this change. 
 

3.     City Council was concerned and inquired about the evacuation plan.  
 

As mentioned in our conversation with staff we will have the management 
company provide the evacuation plan prior to building plan submission.  Note 
we have also contacted the management company about having a 
representative attend our next meeting. It is also important to note that we will 
have managers on site living in the building 24/7 365 days per year. 

 
4.     City Council had asked how many elevators are located on site and what their 
exact locations are and whether or not they are adequate. 
 

We are proposing one elevator centrally located for our residence. It has been 
explained to us that most of our residence prefer to use the main stair case 
leading directly in front of the dining area. History has proven that with this one 
elevator is adequate for our type and design of facility. 
 

5.     Another concern from City Council was over saturation of the market. Please 
provide information regarding other similar facilities in the City of Pearland and the 
market need. The council was also concerned about future occupancy when the 
population cohorts are different and the elderly population ratio decreases. 
 

Currently - the number of age and income qualified seniors for the Harvest 
project is approximately 7,595 within a 10 mile radius. There are 2,865 seniors that 
require housing. We will provide housing 135 or approximately 0.05% of the 
current demand. Those numbers don't include residents that come in from out of 
state or other parts of Texas. Growth in that group over the next 5 years is 
projected at a rate of 27.8%. The general population is projected to increase 
11.9% over that same time period. 
 
Research on this matter shows that with the exception of the 55 older 
communities in the area. There is only one facility that recently received 
approval that being “The Pearland Senior Village” that is geared to the senior 
market segment that we attract.  However there are 6 assisted living facilities in 
the Pearland area. Our type of community can act as a feeder into that type of 
facility (ALF). It is very common that our campus acts as starting point for future 
progression to a medically accommodating facility. As one of our residents 
progresses to the point of needing the medical component our on site manager 
can assist in facilitating the resident and there family to make a smooth transition 
into a higher level of care. 
 



  Pearland Retirement Residence  
  Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 

Page 3 of 5 

 
( Senior Living Facility ) 

1.Pearland Senior Village 
518/Broadway and Cullen  
Not yet built  
 
 

( Assisted Living Facilities ) 
1. Trinity Oaks/Trinity Care  
3033 Pearland Parkway  
Built: 9/2000    
 
 
2. Hampton near Bellavita  
2121 Scarsdale near Bellavita  
Built prior to 1999  

 
3. Colonial Oaks  
2940 Cullen Blvd  
Built 8/2007  
  

4. Living Tree of Texas  
3045 Morris Street  
Built 6/2003  
 
5. Regal Estate 24 Hour Assisted 
Living  
3204 Regal Oaks  
Built prior to 1999  
 
6. Windsong Village Nursing and 
Rehab Center  
3400 E. Walnut  
Built: prior to 1990 

 
6.     Traffic flow was also a concern. The use of the right in right out driveways did not 
provide access for the north flowing traffic to enter and anyone needing to exit and 
head north would have to travel some distance south and then u-turn. Please address 
this issue. Why is the driveway not aligned to Sycamore Drive? 

 
The possibility of providing left turn ingress and egress was considered, with the 
aligning an exit driveway opposite from Sycamore Drive. The locating of a 
driveway at the northerly end of the site would result in a skewed or an offset in 
the intersection due to the inability to correctly align with the property with 
Sycamore Drive.  Extending Sycamore Drive is not feasible because the 
extension would adversely impact the existing residential houses on the 
northwest side of Dixie Farm Road. Providing driveway northeast corner of the 
property would create an offset to the existing median opening that currently 
aligns with Sycamore Drive. This would cause an unsafe traffic condition for 
vehicles exiting the site as they attempting to proceed northbound by making a 
left turn on to Dixie Farm Road. These drivers would be challenging oncoming 
traffic from the south bound lanes by attempting to transition into the north bound 
lanes of Dixie Farm Road. This potentially unsafe condition needs to be avoided.  
Providing driveway access at the southeast corner of the property creates a safer 
situation with the right in and right out movement, this prevents risky cross traffic 
maneuvers. Therefore, vehicles that wish to enter the site will approach from the 
north and then make a legal u-turn at the signalized intersection of Dixie Hollow. 
Thus creating a safe traffic movement as well as preventing impediments to the 
traffic flow on Dixie Farm Road. The same condition and solution exists for 
vehicles exiting the site that wish to go north bound. These vehicles may exit the 



  Pearland Retirement Residence  
  Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 

Page 4 of 5 

site and proceed to the signalized intersection of Broadway and make a legal u-
turn.   
The study of the Kingwood Facility(other facilities owned) focused on the PM 
peak hours of adjacent streets and found that there were very few trips, a fact 
that was corroborated by staff, who indicated that the staff shift changes do not 
occur during the traditional peak hour, and these account for more trips than 
residents. Residents, in fact, are provided shuttle services for most of their travel 
needs, so the primary trip making is by visitors. 
Based on the Traffic Study that has been submitted on the 11th, there are 37 PM 
peak hour trips entering and leaving the site. This volume is based on the trip 
generation book which produced higher numbers than observed at other 
facilities owned in the Houston area, therefore it is expected that traffic produced 
will less than what we are predicting. This equates to one vehicle exiting the site 
about every 3 minutes and 20 seconds and one vehicle entering the site about 
every 3 minutes and 30 seconds. The volume generated during the peak hour is 
comparable to that of the current zoned single family resident of 31 trips.  This is a 
3% increase of the total PM volume. 
 

7.     The Council voiced concern over only one entry into the site. 
 
Please note that this site does have only one public entrance located on the 
southern portion of the site utilizing the existing driveway entrance. As outlined in 
comment #6 above a single access located and the southeast corner of the site 
provides controlled and safe ingress and egress. The relocation or addition of 
access points will complicate and compromise safe traffic flow along Dixie Farm 
Road under its current design and configuration. The actual traffic impact from 
this facility during peak hours is likely to be minimal, the historical experience 
with similar facilities currently operating show that peak traffic times overlap with 
regularly scheduled meal service substantially reducing private auto and facility 
shuttle traffic activity during these peak traffic times. 
Note: an emergency entrance has been included in the design on the northeast 
corner of the site in order to satisfy fire and safety concern while not 
compromising traffic and access standards. 
 

8.     Council voiced concerns regarding buffering from adjoining residential uses, the 
type of fencing and the width of the buffers. 

 
Please note that we have added a 6’ high wood fence along the adjoining 
property line along with the proposed landscape buffering. 
 

9.     Council and P & Z cited other sites like Province Village as being a more 
appropriate area for this use.  

 
We have found through our market study that this site location would be best to 
server our residence and the community.  
Our site is located in the heart of a residential area, our seniors want to live in and 
feel part of a neighborhood. Our site has excellent access to shopping and other 
city services.  



  Pearland Retirement Residence  
  Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 

Page 5 of 5 

In contrast, the Province Village site which is located adjacent to an office/ 
industrial area and is on the edge of the residential areas and not part of the 
nighborhood. Also the Province village site is a considerable drive from shopping 
and services that seniors need. 
 

10.     Council wanted the Hampton Development information reviewed for their 
parking.  

 
This comment was not very clear.  We contacted  this facility and were told that 
they have approximately 80 beds. We then counted the parking stalls on site and 
found that they have 5 handicap stalls with 51 open parking stalls giving a total 
of 56 stalls provided. This would have a parking ratio of .64 spaces per bed. 
 

11.     What are the state requirements for generators? 
 

We have a generator to provide emergency power to lighting for egress 
illumination, per the IBC 1006 and Article 700 of the NEC, and to supply backup 
power for legally required loads which aid in rescue and fire fighting operations, 
per Article 701 of the NEC. We also provide the generator to power kitchen 
equipment and heating equipment to provide meals and gathering spots for our 
residences during a long term power outage.  
 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, please call me directly 
at 503-399-1090. 
 
Thank you,  
 
 
Ron Jackson 

 





























































WORKSHOP 
 

 

 

 

JOINT WORKSHOP OF 

CITY COUNCIL, PEARLAND EDC BOARD,  
AND P&Z COMMISSION 

 



AGENDA – WORKSHOP OF THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, JANUARY 18, 2010, AT 
6:30 P.M., COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 
TEXAS 

 
I PURPOSE OF THE WORKSHOP: 

 
1. COMMISSION INPUT AND DISCUSSION:  PRESENTATION 

REGARDING THE SPECTRUM AREA PLANNING STUDY CONDUCTED 
BY GATEWAY PLANNING GROUP.  Mr. Bill Eisen. 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1840 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I, Judy Krajca, Planning Secretary of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general 
public at City Hall on the 15TH day of January 2010 A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 
Judy Krajca, Planning Office Coordinator 

 
Agenda removed   ____________ day of January 2010. 

 



AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 
             Jerry Koza, Jr.                 Ron Capehart 

P&Z CHAIRPERSON     P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

Neil West         Susan Sherrouse 

          
Darrell Diggs        Vacant 

 
 
 

Henry Fuertes  
 
 
 
 
 

 

JANUARY 18, 2010  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



P&Z Meeting 
01/18/10 

Page 1 of 2 
 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD JANUARY 18, 2010 AT 6:30 
P.M., IN THE 2ND FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                       Regular Meeting of January 4, 2010 

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 

A CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – Final Plat of Savannah 
 Meadows Section Seven  

 
A request by Geoff Freeman, Brown & Gay Engineers, Inc., for Savannah 
Development, Ltd., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah Meadows 
Section Seven located south of the 13500 block of Post Road (C.R. 58). The 
applicant is proposing 50 lots in three blocks and four reserve areas. Property 
is within the City of Pearland E.T.J. and is included within a P.U.D. The 
property is described as follows: 
 
Being 14.89 acres out of the J.S. Talmage Survey, A-562, Brazoria County, 
Texas 
 

B CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – Zone Change No. 2009-15Z 
 
A request of Ron Jackson with Curry Architecture, applicant for Ross 
Maccammon, owner, for a change in zoning from the Single Family 
Residential-1  (R-1) Zoning District to the Planned Development Multi-
Family (PD-MF) Zoning District, on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description :  Being a tract of land approximately 9.5171 acres in the 
W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract No. 70, Brazoria County, Texas and being the 
residue of that tract sold by None Gay Carr to Ross A. McClendon, as 
described in deed recorded under Brazoria county Clerk’s file No. 95-022654. 
 

 General Location:  Located at 2810 Dixie Farm Road, Pearland, Texas 
 
   
 

  

Decision 
Date 
1/22/10 



P&Z Meeting 
01/18/10 

Page 2 of 2 
 

C DISCUSSION ITEM 
 

P&Z Commissioners Questionnaire Responses         
    Addition of vicinity map (1”-1000’ preferable)  to staff reports-showing the 
 Thoroughfare Plan  

New folder with all files for easy and faster downloading. 
 
D UPCOMING MEETINGS 
  

Next P&Z Meeting                           February 1, 2010 
Robert’s Rules pertaining to Tabled Items       February 1, 2010 
P & Z Workshop  - Factors to consider prior to annexation   February 1, 2010  
                  

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 
 
I, Judy Krajca, Office Coordinator of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public 
at City Hall on the  15th day of January 2010 A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Judy Krajca, Planning Office Coordinator 
 

 
Agenda removed   ____________ day of January 2010 A.D. 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



P&Z Minutes 
January 4, 2010 

Page 1 of 4 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD JANUARY 4, 2010 AT 
6:30 P.M., IN THE 2ND FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER   

 
P&Z Chairperson Jerry Koza, Jr. called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. with the following 
present: 
 

P&Z Chairperson Jerry Koza, Jr. 
P&Z Commissioner Neil West 
P&Z Commissioner Ron Capehart 
P&Z Commissioner Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Commissioner Darrell Diggs 
   

Also in attendance were:  Planning Director Lata Krishnarao, Senior Planner Angela 
Gantuah, Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan, and Planning Office Coordinator Judy 
Krajca. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
     
P&Z Commissioner Ron Capehart made the motion to approve the minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of December 7, 2009, and P&Z Commissioner Henry Fuertes 
seconded. 
 
The vote was 5-0. The minutes of December 7, 2009 were approved.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICER 
 
P&Z Commissioner Ron Capehart was elected as the new P&Z Vice-Chairperson. 

 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF PLYLOX 
COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
 
A request by Christian Offenburger, R.P.L.S., Boundary One, L.L.C., applicant, for 
Plylox, Inc., owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat for subdivision of 4.749 acres 
within the Pearland E.T.J. into 6 lots and 2 reserves for drainage purposes. The 
property is located on the southwest side of C. R. 125 near C.R. 129 and is described 
as follows: 
 



P&Z Minutes 
January 4, 2010 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Being 4.749 acres out of Lot 103, West Friendswood Subdivision, Vol. 1, Pg. 96, 
B.C.P.R. and including a replat of Lot 1, Block 1, “AAA” Storage Pearland, Vol. 20, Pg. 
279, B.C.P.R., James F. Perry and Emily M. Austin League, A-111, Brazoria County, 
Texas 
 
Plans & Plat Administrator Richard Keller read the staff report stating the applicant has 
requested a Waiver of Decision for this plat. 
 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Ron Capehart made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Darrell Diggs seconded. 
 
The vote was 5-0.  A Waiver of Decision was approved for the Preliminary Plat of Plylox 
Commercial Addition. 
  
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER PLAT OF PROVINCE VILLAGE 
 
A request by Warren Escovy, LJA Engineering & Surveying, Inc., applicant, for Tex Proj 
2008 LLC, owner, for approval of a Master Plat for subdivision of 43.051 acres zoned 
PUD in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract 198, Brazoria County, Abstract 290, 
Harris County, and the W.D.C. Hall Survey, Abstract 70, Brazoria County, Abstract 23, 
Harris County into 8 blocks, 2 lots, and 18 reserves for landscape, open space, lift 
station, drainage detention, park, parking lot, and recreation uses. The property is 
located between Pearland Parkway and Country Club Drive east of Broadway (F.M. 
518) and the property is described as follows: 
 
Being 43.051acres in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract 198, Brazoria County, 
Abstract 290, Harris County, and the W.D.C. Hall Survey, Abstract 70, Brazoria County, 
Abstract 23, Harris County, City of Pearland, Brazoria County and Harris County, Texas 
 
Plans & Plat Administrator Richard Keller read the staff report. 
 
There was brief discussion among Staff/Commission. 
 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Ron Capehart made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Darrell Diggs seconded. 
 
The vote was 5-0.  The Master Plat of Province Village was approved. 
  
CONDIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF JAMISON 
LANDING 
 
A request by Refugio Trejo, Momentum Engineering + Surveying, applicant, for 
Pearland Landing LLC, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat for subdivision of 
16.2634 acres in the J.F. Perry and E.M. Austin Survey A-111 zoned R-4 into 67 lots for 
residential use and 10 reserves for detention/green space. The property is located on 



P&Z Minutes 
January 4, 2010 

Page 3 of 4 
 

the southwest side of Broadway (F.M. 518) east of Pine Hollow Drive and is described 
as follows: 
 
16.2634 acres of land out of and part of that called 37.421 acre tract recorded in Vol. 
1548, Pg. 473, B.C.D.R. located in the J.F. Perry and E.M. Austin Survey A-111, City of 
Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
Plans & Plat Administrator Richard Keller read the staff report stating the plat had been 
modified to 59 lots, and all comments have been addressed. 
 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Ron Capehart made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Darrell Diggs seconded. 
 
The vote was 5-0.  The Preliminary Plat of Jamison Landing was approved. 
  
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF JAMISON LANDING  
 
A request by Refugio Trejo, Momentum Engineering + Surveying, applicant, for 
Pearland Landing LLC, owner, for approval of a Final Plat for subdivision of 16.2634 
acres in the J.F. Perry and E.F. Austin Survey A-111 zoned R-4 into 67 lots for 
residential use and 10 reserves for detention/green space. The property is located on 
the southwest side of Broadway (F.M. 518) east of Pine Hollow Drive and is described 
as follows: 
16.2634 acres of land out of and part of that called 37.421 acre tract recorded in Vol. 
1548, Pg. 473, B.C.D.R. located in the J.F. Perry and E.M. Austin Survey A-111, City of 
Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas.  
 
Plans & Plat Administrator Richard Keller read the staff report stating there were two 
items remaining:  Park Fees, and the Acceptance of Approval.  Mr. Keller also added 
that the mylars will need to be signed before final recordation.  Mr. Keller recommended 
the two items be listed as a condition of approval. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Henry Fuertes made the motion to approve with the two conditions 
of approval, and P&Z Vice-Chairperson Ron Capehart seconded. 
 
The vote was 5-0.  The Final Plat of Jamison Landing was approved with the Park Fees, 
and Acceptance of Approval added as conditions of approval. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Jerry Koza, Jr. recessed the P&Z Regular meeting at 6:45 p.m.  
 
P&Z Chairpson Jerry Koza, Jr. reconvened the P&Z Regular meeting at 8:15 p.m. 
  
UPDATE OF ZONING CASES  
 
Senior Planner Angela Gantuah went over the zoning cases and status. 



P&Z Minutes 
January 4, 2010 

Page 4 of 4 
 

  
DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
Planning Director Lata Krishnarao discussed the P&Z Commissioners Survey in detail. 
Also discussed, was the schedule of the Future Land Use Plan Workshops, and the 
website posting of P&Z Agenda packets 
 
Next P&Z and Joint Public Hearing will be on January 18, 2010. 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Jerry Koza, Jr. adjourned the meeting at 10:08 p.m. 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Judy Krajca, Planning Secretary 
 

Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 18th day of January 2010, A.D. 
   

 __________________________________  
                                                             P&Z Chairperson Jerry Koza, Jr. 







jkrajca
Sticky Note
See plat copies at end of this document (Page 99 & 100)





jkrajca
Sticky Note
See Joint Public Hearing item documentation for Zone Change No,. 2009-15Z










	1. Memo-Outline
	10. Plat  Savannah Meadows Sec. 7
	2. JOINT PUBLIC HEARING
	3. 2009-15Z Agenda  for JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	3A.  2009-15Z JPH 1-18-10 PDF
	4. WORKSHOP
	4a. 011810 joint workshop
	5. P&Z COVERSHEET
	6. 011810 P&Z Agenda
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	A CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – Final Plat of Savannah  Meadows Section Seven 

	7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	8. 010410 P&Z Minutes
	CALL TO ORDER
	P&Z Chairperson Jerry Koza, Jr. called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. with the following present:
	UPDATE OF ZONING CASES
	DISCUSSION ITEM

	9. Items A - D

